UNITED NATIONS

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

Distr.
GENERAL

A/AC.109/3R. b9
12 June 1962

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

o]

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON THE SITUATION WITH REGARD TO THE
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE DECLARATION ON THE GRANTING OF
INDEPENDEFECE TO COLONWIAL COUNTRIES AND PEOFPLES
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FORTY-NINTH MECTTHG

Held at Headquarters, New York,
on Friday, 11 May 1962, at 1L.15 &.m.

CORNTENTS

Southern Rhodesia (A/4C.109/L.4fRev.3, L.9, L.12) (continued)

Basutoland, Bechunanaland and Swaziland

£2-13102




A/AC.109/SR.L49

English
Page 2
PRESENT :
Chairman: Mr. JHA (India)
later, Mr. COULIBALY Mali
Rapporteur: Mr. RIFAT 3yria
Members: Mr. PLIMSOLL Australia
7
glhl:: gmmasmm) Cantodle.
Mr. GEBRE-EGZY Ethiopia
Mr. NATWAR SINGH India
iz
Mr. COULIBALY Mali
Mr. SOLTYSIAK Poland
Mr. NGAIZA Tanganyika
Mr, Taieb SLIM Tunisia
Mr., OBEREMKO Union of Soviet Sccialist Republies
Mr. CROWE ) United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Mr. SANKEY) Nerthern Ireland
Mr. BIRGHAM United States of America
Mr. S0SA-RODRIGUEZ) Venezuela
Mr. SILVA SUCRE )
Mr. PAVICEVIC Yugoslavia
BSecretariat: Mr. PROTITCH Under-8ecretary for Trusteeship and
Informetion from Non-Self-Governing
Territories
Mr. CHACKO Secretary of the Committee

Jen



AfAC.109/SR. L9

Englieh :

Page 3
SOUTHERN RHODESEA (A/AC.109/L.4/Rev.3, L.9, L.12) (continuagd)

The CHATRMAN invited further ccemment on the text of the draft decision oo

the question of Southern Bhodesia which he hed suggested to the Committes et the
previous meeting.

Mr. GEBRE-EGZY {EBthiopie) proposed that the text should be amended to
indicate thet the report of the Sub-Committee (A/AC.109/L.9) and the two draft
resolutions (A/AC.109/L.4/Rev.3 and A/AC.109/L.12) would be appended as

ernexes I, II and IT] respectively, since onge the Committee had endorsed those

texts, they would stend in the namc of the Committee as a whole and not of the

Sub-Ccmmittee or the sponsors of the draft resolutions.

Mr. PAVICEVIC (Yugeslavia) supported the Bthiopian representative's

proposal.

Mr. OQULIBALY (lMali), spcaking as one of the sponsors of dreft
resolution A/AC.109/L.L/Rev.3, said that it was clear from the statements made

that the majority of the Committee approved the report of the Sub-Committec and

the two draft resolutions. He would not press for them to be put to the vote
vrovided it was understood that approval by the Commitbee of the text suggested
ty the Chairman would imply endorsement of the report of the Sub-Comuittee and of

the two drafi resolutions, which would thus stand in the name of the Committee as

& vhole.,

Mr. Taieb SLI¥. (Tunisia) agreed with the Malian representative.

Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that it was

2lear from the statements on the subjcet thet whercas the mejority of the
Ccumlittee supported the two draft resolutions, the coloniaslist Powers, a minoriby
rreup in the Committee, were opposed to them. He fajled to see how those two
iieretrically copposed views eoculd be reconciled. In the circumstances the normal
taing would have been to put the texts to the vote. In the Trustecship Council,
uzere the colonial Powers enjoyed an absolute majority, they insisted that draft
resolutions should be put to the vote and even tried to exercise a right of vetc
cver the views of the minority by refusing to allow the proposals of certain

zzlegations to be put to the vote, In the Trusteeship Council the colenialists did

n.2t speak of the need for a consensus of opinion. In the Special Committce, on the



A/AC.109/SR.L9
English
Page b

(Mr. Oberemko, USSR)

other hand, they resorted to procedural manceuvres in their efforts to impose the
will of the minority upon the majority. Although the Committee was holding its
forty-ninth meeting it had not yet taken a single decision, the reason being that
it had always tried tc reach generzl agrecment where there could be none. There
could be no compromise tetween the views of those who supported the lib=ration

of peoples and those who were opposed to it. Co-operation in the Committee was
possible only on the basis of the implementation of the Declaration on the granting
of independence to colonial countries and peoples.,

His delegation wished to reserve its position with regard to the present
procedure, since the desire to achieve agreement where there could be none
constituted one of the main impediments in the way of the expeditious discharge
of the tasks entrusted to the Committee.

Nothing less than the Ethioplan amendments ccould be acceptable. If they
were not edopted the Committee would not have taken any decision and differences
in interpretation would immediately arise. In view of the urgency of the question,
that must be avoided at all cosis. It should be remembered that the point at

issue was not one of procedure but the fate of the people of Scuthern Rhodesia.

My. BINGHAM {United States of America} said that his delegation was
content to accept the vwording suggested by the Chairman. As the Malian
representative had rightly cointed out, the decisicn vas nobt unanimous: it wes
the decision of the majority, in which his own delegation could not concur. His
delegation was opposed to the discussion of the question of Scuthern Rhcdesia at
the resumed sixteenth session or at a special session of the General Assenbly,
for reasons which it had fully explained, and it had grave reservations regarding
the wording of the draft resolutions and the prccedure followed in connexion with
them.

Mr. IVELLA (Italy) reiterated the reservaticns of nis delegation
concerning the report of the Sub-Committee on Southern Rhodesia and the two drarft

resolutions.

/e



A/AC.109/3R. L9
English
Papge 5

Mr, CROWE (United Kingdom) said that he wished to make 1t clezr that his
delegation did not agree with the decision of the Committee and found the two
dralt resolutions unacceptable. It disagreed with the procedure that had been
followed and regarded a discussion of the question of Southern Rhodesia at the
resumed 82s5sion of the General Assembly or at a speclal session as unnecessary and

undesirable.

Mr. PLIMSOLL {Australia) recslled that he had repeatedly indicated his

dissent from the two draft resolutions, for Teusons he had already given.

The CHAIEMAN said that thz various reservations would be reflected in the

records, which would be forwarded to the General Assembly together with the

Cormittee'ls report.

Mr. GEBRE-EGZY (Ethiopia), Mr. RIFAI (Syria) and Mr, Taieb SLIM (Tunisia)

suggested a number of drafting amendments %0 the text suggested by the Chairman.

Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Soci:list Republics) said that his

delegation did not wish %o treat the views of *he minority in the Cormittee in the
ranner in whici the representatives of the colomnia)l Powers treated the views of
the minority in the Trusteeship Council. It was olly right that the reservations

voiced by certain delegations should be reflected in “hne report itself.

_ Mr. BINGHAM (United States of America) caid while he did not propose that,
to enter into any controversy, he d4id not wish his silence o be taken as assent
to what the USSR representative had said about the procedure 1» the Trusteeship

Council.

The CEATRMAN said that if there were no objections he woul take it that

vie Committee agreed to record its decision on the guestion of Southern Rhodesis
tn the form he had suggested at the previous weeting, as amended in the cOusge
o7 the subseguent discussion.

It was so decided,

EASUTQLAYD, BECHUANALAND AND SWAZILAND

At the Invitation of the Chalrusn, Mr. Ntsu Mokhehle, National President,

zasutoland Congress Party, and Mr. Gerard P, Ranorebolil, Bagutoland Congress Party,

took places at thne Committes table.




A/AC.109/SR. 19
English
Page 6

Mr, MOKHEHLE (Basutoland Congress Party) said that his appearance before

The Committee was prompted by the desire of the people of Basutoland to gain
immediate and complete independence. It was a desire shared not only by the
43,000 adult wmembers of his party but also by thousands of villagers who supported
it, commoners and chiefs alike. In recent years it had been voiced also by the
leaders of the Basutoland Freedom Party and the Marematlou Party and by the
Paramount Chief himself, who, while on a visit to the United States early in 1962,
had called for independence early in 1963, As the Committee could see from the
letter dated 13 April 1962 from Mr. G.C. Manyeli and Mr, E,T. Tan, writing on
behalf of the Basutoland National Party (A/AC.109/PET.7), that Party also expressed
the wish to see Basutoland free of United Kingdom rule, although the solution

it advocated was the establishment of a trusteeship.

The United Kingdom's indifference towards the United Nations Charter and the
resolutions of the General Assembly, in particular resolutions 1514 (XV) and
1654 (Xv1), seriously threatened Basutoland's aspirations, That was why his Party
was requesting the General Assembly to promote the early attainment of independence
by Basutoland pursuant to resolution 1514 (Xv).

Until 1960 Basutoland had been ruled by the United Kingdom Resident
Commissioners and by feudal chiefs. The Basutoland National Council, an adviscry
body established in 1905, consisted of 100 members, all of whom had been chiefs
ar sub-chiefs nominated by the Paramount Chief without reference to the people.

The Resident Commissioner hed been the Chairman of that Council. All legislative
and executive powers had been wielded by the United Kingdom High Commissioner,
who had resided in South Africa, The indigenous inhabitants had had no say in
the proclamations and administrative policies that affected them.

In 1944, after years of agitation by the oppressed and exploited common
people, administrative arrangeﬁents had been made for the establishment of district
councils consisting of chiefs and their supporters, elected at village meetings
by popular acclamation under the supervision of the chief himself, The District
Commissioners were Chairmen of the District Councils. F¥ach Distriect Council

presented one of its members for nomination to the Basutoland National Council by

/e



A/AC.109/8R.49
English
Page T

(Mr. Mokhehle, Basutoland
Congress Party)

the Paramount Chief. The Basutoland National Council tendered advice to the
Resident Commissloner only on matters which did not affect Europeans and Indians,
The members of the Council, many of whose relatives had been sentenced to death
by the British courts, had been subservient to United Kingdom officials, with the
result that oppression, exploitation and discrimination based on colour kad

been the rule.

His party had been formed in 1952. Its manifesto outlawed discrimination
based on colour and demanded immediate self-government and a guarantee that the
1910 promise by the United Kingdom to incorporate Basutoland into the Union of
South Africa would be abandoned.

In 1954, following the general mobilization of the people by the Basutoland
Congress Party in a campaign for democratic rule, a United Kingdom Commission had
rade recommendations for administrative reforms which had transferred all
administrative powers directly to the United Kingdom officiels and which had been
rejected by the people. Two years later the Basutoland National Council had
been permitted to establish two Committees to consider constitutional changes that
would meet the people's demands. Those Committees had consisted of the nominated
nembers of the National Council and had included no popular leaders. The
constitutional recommendations they had put forward had been approved by the Council
and in 1958 a delegetion of the Council, consisting of five Chiefs, had been
chosen to attend a meeting in London with five United Kingdom representatives, The
cormon people, who had been excluded from representation on the delegation, had
collected £400 in two weeks in order to send the President of the Basutoland
Congress Party to London for purposes of lobbying.

As a result of the 1958 constitutional talks, Basutoland hed been granted a
constitution full of contradications, Where the pecple had demanded a national
council with a majority of elected members, they had been given one consisting of
forty nominated wembers and forty elected members. The recommendations of the
London talks had been accepted by the old National Council, The Basutoland Congress
Party, though disapproving of the new Constitution, had decided to give it a
trial.

When the new Legislative'Council had been opened in 1960, the Resident-

Cormissioner had heen President and the nominated members had consisted of twenty-two

fou



A/AC.109/SR.49
English
Page 8

{14r. Mokhehle, Basutoland Congress Party)

ex-officio Chiefs, four ex-officio British officials and fourteen Joint nominees of
the Faramount Chief and the Resident-Commisaioner, who had taken care not to
nominate members of the Basutoland Congress Party; the =lected members had
comprised thirty-two members of the Basutoland Congress Party, five mewbers of the
Maremattou Party, two Independents and one member of the Basutoland National

Party. Of the eignt non-Congress elected members, seven had been Chiefa or
Sub-Chiefls. As had been reflected in a letter from the Government Secretary to the
High Commissioner, the first objective of the United Xingdom and of the Chiefs

had been to gather together the forty nominated members and and the eight non-
Congress elected members into an anti.Congress bloc. It was that unstable alliance
of minorities wnich occupied the Government benches in the legislature at the
praesent time,

The Executive Council was composed of four United Kingdom officials, two of the
Paramount Chief's nominees in the Legislative Council and two elected members of

~the Council.

The result was that the United Kingdom officials and the Chiefs, besides being
the administrators hoth nationally and locally, made th2 laws and decided the
policies of the Government. Those circumstances, together with the non-responsible
nature of the Executive to the Legislative, were a source of great irritation to
the Basotho. They alsc contravened the provision in article 21 of the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights tnat the basis of the authority of government should be

the will of the people.

The present electoral law of Basutoland was generally acceptable: it did not
discriminate on the érounds of race, religion, sex or colour. The provision that
anyone who did not pay taxes could noi vote, however, excluded most women as well
as old men. The law also permitted any British subject to vote, thus giving the
franchise to South Africesns in Basutoland who also voted in South Africa; on the
other hand, Basotho living in Scuth Africa could never qualify as voters because
thelr skins were black.

Local government in Basutoland consisted of District Councils, whose members
vere elected by secret ballots from a common roll, as.a result of which, the
Basutoland Congress Party had obtained a clear majority in seven out of nine

districts in the 1960 elections. In respect of local government, therefore, the

/



A/AC.109/5R. 49
English
Page 9

(Mr. Mokhehle, Basutoland Congress Party)

Constitution was democratic and progressive. There were, however, some serious
limitations to the powers of the Couneils: their finanecial estimates, the
establishment of subordinate councils and the adoption of by-laws were all subject
to the approval of the Executive Council. The result was constant friction
between the District Councils, which represented the wishes of the peoP;e, and the
Executive Counecil, which controlled the armed police. If it vwere not for the
popular rmoverent's commitment to non-violent methods, there would have been more
serious upheavals. As a result of the constitutional system, the District Councils®
estimates were always reduced as much as possible in order to 1imit the extent

of the public services rendered by the District Councils; applicaticons for the
establishment of village councils, designed to enable the villagers to participate
in the administratiaon of their own villages, had been rejected without any

reason being given; and by-laws which had been referred to and accepted by the
electorate had failed to obtain authorization from tne Executive Council, again
with no reason given. In addition, the executive member for local government and
chleftainship affairs had encouraged chiefs tc force their-subjects to sign
petitions against the District Councils, thus giving the Executive Council a prebext
for placing restrictions on the latter. In such ways, the British officials and
the Chlefs undermined the Constitution uhich-they themselves had created., They did
g0 because they had been taken by surprise by the successes of the Basutoland .
Congress Parby, which challenged thelr privileged position, and because they were
determined to cripple the democratic administration being initiated in the wvillages
by the District Councils and to recapture the limited powers which had been
coaferred uwpon those Councils. he United Kingdom hoped thus to create frustration
and chaos in order to Jjustify its continued rule over Besutoland; that attitude

125 incompatible with the provieions of the United Nations Charter and of Genera-
Assembly resolution 151k (%v).

With regard to the eccnomic situation, Basutoland was an under-developed
country with a low level of living., Tte people's only source of livelihood was
agriculture and the Chiefs monopolized the right to allocate the land, of whi:h only
250,000 acres were arable. Much corruption was practised in the alloecation cf land,
If properly cultivated, the land could yield an annual national income of

£10 million, yet the economic value of the agricultural potentiel was reduced to

./'“



AJAC.109/SR. 49
English
Page 10

(Mr. Mpkhehle, Basutoland Congress Party)

about £1 million by such factors as unplanned human habitations seattered about the
agricultural larnd, unscientific methods of cultivation, the continued absence

from home of intellipent and sble-bodied young men who worked in the mines in
South Africa and the lack of trek animals, The use of tractors had only recently
been introduced. The white traders paid low prices to the Basotho farwers and
made exorbitant profits. The 1960 figures of the Agricultural Department revealed
hat the average percentage profits made on maize, sorghum, vheat and beans
respectively were 20 per cent, 23 per cent, 29 per cent and 100 per cent.

With regard to the question of minerals, a British geologist engaged by the
Government had reported in 19L0 that Basutoland was without mineral deposits. In
1851 and 1952 2 Mosotho had been refused permission to search for diamonds, but the
seme permission had been given in 1955 to a European, who had discovered valuable
deposits and had been granted a2 mining contract. A considerable amount aof
11licit diamond traffic was carried on by the South African Europeans in Basutoland
arnd British officials were involved in the traffic. The only hope for the
Basotho lay in taking over the govermment. A thorough geological survey was
needed, but the United Kingdom prevented any such step.

Nearly 200,000 Basotho had been forced by hunger to seek work on farms in
South Africa or in the wanufacturing and mining industries run by the British in the
Raodesias and in South Africa, under contracts which made them slaves in all but
name, The mining recruits were housed in closed and guarded compounds; they lived
apart from their families; they were not free to travel or to organize trade
unions; they worked eight to twelve hours a day for seven days a week and vere
unable to leave the compound to visit thelr homes during the six or nine months
of their contracts. MWany died in the mines or returned home ill or permanently
disabled, The compensationrthey received was meagre and the Government gave then
no assistance,

Others were induced by South African white farmers, who promised them attractive
pay and conditions, to go and work on South African farme. They were paid cone or
two shillings a day and if the farmers did not wish to pay them they turned them on
to the streets, where they were arrested for not having passes., Many died on the
farme as a result of ill-treatment. Britlsh officials had taken no steps to

remedy the evila,



A/AC.109/5R .Lg
English
Page 11

{Mr, Mokhehle, Basutoland
Congress Party)

In Basutoland itself, workers were paid an average of £2,10s, a month, or
an average of &% for adult men. Trade unions were authorized but there was no
labour law establishing proper machinery for settiing labour disputes; there
were no labour coffices or commissloners, and striking workers were arrested as
anti-white rioters. The whole economic system in Basutoland was designed to
maintain the supply of cheap lebour for the farms, mining and manufecturlng
industries in SBouth Africa and the Rhodesias.

Turning to the educational situation, he said that though literacy was
high in Basutoland, the general standard of educatlon was very low, Whereas the
population of Basutoland was 800,000, the total number of pupils in secondary
schools in 1960/61 had been 1,776 and there was only cne university attended by
twenty students. Many children left school at standard 3 or b; from the age of
fifteen they loitered or the streets &nd were arrested and impriscned as vagrants.
At the age of twenty they were forced by economic pressures to seek work in
South Africa. There were no technical schools or colleges, merely a few trade
and craft schools. Some sixty~two years earller the Basotho had contributed
towards the building of a technical school, which had taken its pupils to a
fairly high level In certaln erafts. That situation, however, had interfered
with the employment of white artisans from South African Rhodesia and Mozambilque,
and the Britlsh had refused to employ the graduates of the school ln government
service; when the Basotho had reacted against that, the school's standards had
been lowered and it had ceased to be & technical school of any importance.
Economic considerations made it difficult for children to complete their secondary
school education or to go on to universities. Since 1940, Govermment scholarships
for university education had been limited to & maximum of five a year and
scholarships were granted for certain courses only. Basutoland had about 500
university graduates, inecluding only twelve medicel practitioners, two graduates
in commerce, one 1n economics, one statistician, one veterinary doctor and cne
agricultural seientist. Io 1948 the Basotho had taxed themselves especially to
provide higher and technical cducation in overseas universities; yet after sixteen
years there was not-a single student who had completed any degree overseas with the
help of the fund. The.situation would only be remedied if the Basctho governed

themselves.



A/AC . 109/5R U9
English
Page 12

(Mr. lMokhehle, PBasutoland
Consress Party)

In successive resolutions the United Wations had offered assistance in
the training of civil and technical cadres. A large pumber of Member States
had offered scholarships in their schools and universities in response to
General Assembly resolutions 845 (IX) and 1540 (XV). The United Kingdom had
not helped a single Basotho student to study abreoad under that scheme, the
reason being that its plans would be undermined if the purposes of the scholarships
wvere achieved. In 1961 the Basutoland Congress Party had succeeded in sending
thirty -two students abroad under the scheme and it was now organizing
scholarships for students from Swaziland and Bechuanaland.

It had been argued that Basutoland would be unable to fend for itself
economically without United Kingdom assistance. That was incorrect, for the
Basotho lived on what they themselves produced from the soil or by their ovn
labour, The government statistics for 1950, for instance, showed that although
there had been scme imports of maize - the country'!s staple food - from South
Africa ir that year, those imports had been more than offset by exports of
wheat, sorghum, beans and peas of more than twice the value, Indeed, the figures
sheved that although crop production was admittedly still low, the country was by
no means dependent upon South Africa for its foed supply and there was no doubt
that in a {ree Basutoland production would be much higher. The current
substantial disparity between buying and selling prices would also be considerably
reduced if the Basstho were in control of their own affairs.

'The fruit and lLivestock industries, which offered considerable possibilities
of development, had been sadly neglected by the authorities. Although many
cold-climate fruits were successfully produced in Basutoland, appeals to the
Government to systematize production and to establish a canning industry had
gone unheeded, with the result that the country still had to import fruit from
South Africa. In the case of the livestock industry, exports of wool and mohair
already brought in more than one million pounds a year, while sales of cattle
could be increased considerably if the merciless exploitation of the Basctho by
the white traders, with the connivence of the authorities,were eliminated. There
was no doubt that, with government interest and assistance, Basutoland could

derjve a sizable income from its agricultural and livestcck industries. Wor had



A/AC.109/SR.U49
English
Page 13

(Mr, Mokhehle, Basutoland
Congress Party)

the country's mineral resources yet been thoroughly surveyed. Diamond deposits
had been found and diamond mining was beginning, but a thorough survey would
show that the country possessed all kinds of other mineral deposits.b

The country's apparent poverty was in fact entirely due to the management
of its natural and human resources by the United Kingdom authorities.
Thirty-eight per cent of the éurrent expenditure was met from United Kingdom
funds but a good part of that percentage went into the salaries, pensions and
other social services of the British themselves. With careful handling of the
national assets by a national Government that 38 per cent could unquestionably be
reduced and the national income increased many, times over. Independence was the
only key to the country's economic development.

Turning to the historicel snd political considerations, he stressed that
Basutoland was not a conquered nation and the United Kingdom had no claim, by
right of conquest or by treaty, to ownership of the land or government of the
people, Since 1842, the time of the first asscciation between the British and
the Basotho, the latter had never ccmpromised on the question of who cwned the
land and territory of Basutoland., The Besotho had always regarded their
association with the British as an alliance and had consistently resisted the
efforts of any foreigners to acquire land rights and of the United Kingdom
authorities to impese their own direct administration. In 1871, when the British
had annexed Basutoland to the Cape Colony, it had been in the face of strong
oppocsition on the part of the Basotho. The resulting discord and tension had
led to war in 1880, vhen the Basctho had refused to be disarmed by the Cape
Parliament,

, Mr. Coulibaly (iuli)}, Vice-Chairman, took the Cheir.

The CHATRMAN suggested that, in view of the late hour, the petitioner

should continue his statement at the afternoon meeting.

The meeting Tose at 1 p.n.






